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Dear Andrew, 

RE: Preliminary Assessment of Gas Transmission Access Code (GTAC) 

Greymouth Gas New Zealand Limited (Greymouth) supports the conclusion of the GIC’s 
consultation paper, “Preliminary Assessment of Gas Transmission Code” dated 13 February 
2018 (the Paper) that the GTAC is not materially better than current transmission access 
arrangements. 

Greymouth’s answers to the questions in the Paper are set out in the submissions template, 
attached as an appendix to this submission.  In addition, there are four key matters we consider 
should be priority considerations for the future of the GTAC process, which we set out in this 
letter. 

Greymouth considers fundamental changes need to be made to the framework of the proposed 
arrangements.  For that reason, this submission does not address many areas of the GTAC in 
detail.  This does not mean that we do not continue to hold the same concerns with the GTAC 
that we have expressed in previous submissions.  However, we consider the most constructive 
approach at this point is a forward-looking, high level focus. 

1. A robust process will be critical to a successful code
The GIC’s preliminary and final assessments are concerned only with the approval or otherwise
of the GTAC and supporting arrangements.  However, if the preliminary assessment’s
conclusion is carried through into the final assessment, then the GTAC will have failed and a
new process will need to be established to continue momentum towards a harmonised set of
transmission access arrangements.

First Gas has indicated in its industry presentation and in one-on-one stakeholder sessions that 
it wishes to hear stakeholder views on next steps.  It may also be appropriate for the GIC, if it 
affirms its preliminary assessment, to issue either separately or as part of its final assessment, 
its view on an appropriate process going forward.  GIC’s 8 March decision to include cross-
submissions on this Paper is a good step to assist in crystallising industry’s views on the next 
steps and the issues. 



Greymouth considers industry has the commitment to continue an industry-led process for a 
second round.  However, that commitment is unlikely to survive a second failed process.  The 
GTAC process presented industry with a unique opportunity to develop simplified and 
streamlined transmission access arrangements under a single pipeline operator.  Instead, the 
process resulted in a complex and incomplete set of arrangements that have fallen at the first 
hurdle.  Industry now has a second chance. 
 
Greymouth considers the following elements will be critical to the success of the new process: 
 

 Adaptability – First Gas has to be willing to break down the complex structure of the 
GTAC, simplify it and then rebuild it.  This does not necessarily mean starting with a 
‘blank slate’, but that might be the simplest and most efficient approach.  The number 
of different types of fees and charges contained in the GTAC, and the complexity they 
create, suggest that a return to first principles is the best approach. 
 

 A comprehensive approach – A significant issue with the GTAC is that the set of 
arrangements was not complete when the code was submitted to the GIC.  
Interconnected parties were treated almost as an afterthought.  The next stage of the 
process must focus on the whole of the supply chain and ensure all arrangements are 
complete and unified before being submitted for assessment. 
 

 The process should not be dictated by a deadline – one of the reasons the GTAC is 
below standard is because the process appeared to be rushed in order to meet an 
arbitrary go-live date of 1 October 2018.  While it is entirely appropriate to set a target 
date, the process should not be dictated by unrealistic deadlines.  Industry needs to 
have enough time not only to develop a robust and resilient code, but also to provide a 
buffer between finalising the code (and its supporting arrangements) and its go-live 
date for adequate preparation, including a fully tested IT system. 
 

 Quality professional advice – The development of an industry-wide code is a 
significant undertaking and should not be undertaken without independent professional 
input.  This includes advice as to design, which should help improve efficiency and 
reduce complexity.  It also includes professional input into execution, which should 
reduce the quantity of drafting errors experienced so far in the process.   
 

 Independent facilitation – the GTAC process may have been more successful if it 
had been independently facilitated.  Facilitation will be increasingly important as the 
industry moves into a second round of code negotiations.  The GIC, with its role as 
code assessor, is not the proper party to facilitate, but it would be appropriate for it to 
fund a facilitator and we encourage it to do so. 
 

 GIC oversight – it may be appropriate for the GIC to indicate when it will step in to 
effect a regulatory solution.  Although it would not be appropriate for it to act as 
facilitator, it should have some element of oversight to ensure the process does not go 
off-track again. 

 
2. Oversight of supplementary agreements is needed during transition 
The Paper outlines doubts the GIC has about the merits of the GTAC’s proposed 
supplementary agreements.  Greymouth considers that supplementary agreements, in 
particular non-standard pricing, should be fully reviewed before a new code is finalised.   



We consider that a change in transmission products and access terms should require a 
reassessment of the basis and terms on which non-standard pricing terms are offered to end-
users – policies that may have been appropriate under current codes may no longer be fit for 
purpose under the new arrangements.  Given that non-standard pricing policies are required to 
be disclosed to the Commerce Commission, it may be appropriate to include the Commission 
in this part of the process. 
 
However, there is a further issue concerning supplementary agreements that the Paper does 
not address.  The GTAC (or its replacement) is intended to introduce harmonised transmission 
access arrangements for the whole gas industry.  Allowing parties to contract out of part of 
those arrangements in advance, as the present draft GTAC does, destroys the integrity of the 
new code. 
 
3. Commerce Act issues require further scrutiny 
The Paper raises two issues under the Commerce Act – the question of whether park and loan 
revenue is regulated or unregulated, and whether the Ahuroa gas storage facility has the 
potential to divert revenue from the regulated business into an unregulated related party. 
 
Greymouth considers the importance of these concerns should not be underrated and that they 
should be subject to close scrutiny during the next stage of the process, including involving the 
Commission where appropriate.  The inclusion in the new code of any fees or other penalty that 
could result in increased demand for gas storage, park and loan, or other unregulated revenue 
streams, should be subject to stringent restrictions to avoid the potential for future misuse.  This 
issue was not addressed in First Gas’ 8 March open letter regarding Ahuroa. 
 
4. Transparent RPO dispute process required 
The Paper discusses RPO at various places but understates how the more principled definition 
will work in practice.  We consider that RPO disputes or queries should be assessed by an 
independent party.  These public precedents should result in a more meaningful framework that 
First Gas and industry participants can use to guide pipeline decisions. 
 
Conclusion 
 
We look forward to using the Paper, submissions, cross-submissions, and the GIC’s final 
assessment as a roadmap for the next steps. 
 
Yours sincerely 

Chris Boxall 
Commercial Manager 
























